

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47

**REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES
PROVINCE OF LEYTE
TACLOBAN CITY
-oOo-**

SANGGUNIANG PANLALAWIGAN

**MINUTES OF THE 59th REGULAR SESSION OF THE SANGGUNIANG
PANLALAWIGAN OF LEYTE, HELD AT THE SESSION HALL, LEGISLATIVE
BUILDING, CAPITOL GROUNDS, TACLOBAN CITY, ON 06 NOVEMBER 2017.**

PRESENT:

- | | |
|-----------------------------------|---------------------------------------|
| 1. Atty. Carlo P. Loreto | Vice-Governor/Presiding Officer |
| 2. Hon. Ranulfo S. Abellanosa | 1 st District Board Member |
| 3. Hon. Trinidad G. Apostol | 2 nd District Board Member |
| 4. Hon. Alan Pereña Ang | 3 rd District Board Member |
| 5. Hon. Ma. Corazon E. Remandaban | 3 rd District Board Member |
| 6. Hon. Manuel Vicente M. Torres | 4 th District Board Member |
| 7. Hon. Mesias P. Arevalo | 4 th District Board Member |
| 8. Hon. Florante A. Cayunda, Jr. | 5 th District Board Member |
| 9. Hon. Emmanuel L. Gacis | 5 th District Board Member |
| 10. Hon. Nolie C. Caña | Ex-Officio Member, LnBP President |

ABSENT:

- | | |
|--------------------------|------------------------------------------------------------------------------|
| Hon. Gina E. Merilo | 1st District Board Member
(On Mandatory Leave) |
| Hon. Niccolo J. Villasin | 2nd District Board Member
(O.B. in the 2 nd District of Leyte) |
| Hon. Wilson S. Uy | Ex-Officio Member, PCL President |

=====

The 59TH Regular Session of the Sangguniang Panlalawigan of Leyte held at the Session Hall, Legislative Building, Capitol Grounds, Tacloban City, was called to order by Atty. Carlo P. Loreto, the Honorable Vice-Governor and Presiding Officer at exactly 2:50 o'clock in the afternoon.

Invocation was given by the Honorable Trinidad G. Apostol, 2nd District Board Member, followed by the singing of the Pambansang Awit ng Pilipinas.

After which, a motion to dispense with the Panunumpa sa Watawat, the Leyte Hymn, the PBMLP Hymn and the PBMLP Creed of the agenda was presented by the Honorable Florante A. Cayunda, Jr., the Floor Leader and was duly seconded by the

48 Honorable Trinidad G. Apostol, of the 2nd District of Leyte and the Honorable Ma.
49 Corazon E. Remandaban, of the 3rd District of Leyte.

50 As the motion was duly seconded and there was no discussion, the same was
51 carried.

52 The calling of the roll was then made by the Secretary to the Sanggunian, Atty.
53 Marni Rose D. Zatarain to determine presence of quorum for the day's session. The
54 presence of nine (9) Members was known and she also informed the Body that the
55 Secretariat received letters from the Honorable Niccolo J. Villasin and the Honorable
56 Gina E. Merilo informing that they cannot attend the day's session.

57 Considering the presence of nine (9) Members, the presence of quorum was
58 then announced.

59 HON. CARLO P. LORETO: VICE-GOVERNOR/PRESIDING OFFICER

60 There is quorum to do business.

61 Mr. Floor Leader.

62 HON. FLORANTE A. CAYUNDA, JR.: 5THDIST. BOARD MEMBER/FLOOR LEADER

63 Yes, Mr. Chair.

64 We don't have our Minutes of our previous regular session, so we now go
65 straight to our Calendar of Business.

66 Item No. 1, Madam Secretary, please.

67 ATTY. MARNI ROSE D. ZATARAIN: SP SECRETARY

68 **ITEM NO. 01**

69 Presented for consideration is **Ordinance No. 17-07 of the**
70 **Municipality of Inopacan, Leyte entitled, "AN ORDINANCE CREATING THE**
71 **TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT TEAM (TET) UNDER THE MUNICIPAL MAYOR'S**
72 **OFFICE,"** recommended for the declaration of its **VALIDITY** by the Provincial
73 Legal Office in its 2nd Indorsement dated October 14, 2017.

74
75 HON. FLORANTE A. CAYUNDA, JR.: 5TH DIST. BOARD MEMBER/FLOOR LEADER

76 Can you recognize the Honorable Gacis, Mr. Chair?

77 HON. CARLO P. LORETO: VICE-GOVERNOR/PRESIDING OFFICER

78 The Honorable Gacis is recognized.
79
80

81 HON. EMMANUEL L. GACIS: 5TH DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

82

83 Thank you.

84

85 Presented for consideration is Ordinance No. 17-07 of the Municipality of

86 Inopacan, Leyte, "An ordinance creating the Traffic Enforcement Team (TET)

87 under the Municipal Mayor's Office."

88 This ordinance has been reviewed by the Provincial Legal Office in its

89 Endorsement dated October 14, 2017. They recommended for the declaration of

90 validity of the said ordinance. So, this representation would like to concur with the

91 observation and recommendation of the Provincial Legal Office.

92 So, I move to pass a resolution approving Ordinance No. 17-07 passed by

93 the SB of Inopacan, Leyte.

94 I so move.

95 HON. FLORANTE A. CAYUNDA, JR.: 5TH DIST. BOARD MEMBER/FLOOR LEADER

96 Second.

97 HON. MANUEL VICENTE M. TORRES: 4TH DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

98 Second.

99 HON. CARLO P. LORETO: VICE-GOVERNOR/PRESIDING OFFICER

100 It has been moved and duly seconded to approve the subject ordinance of

101 Inopacan, Leyte.

102 Discussion?

103 Hearing none, the motion is carried and approved.

104 Approved unanimously.

RES. NO. 2017-686

105 HON. FLORANTE A. CAYUNDA, JR.: 5TH DIST. BOARD MEMBER/FLOOR LEADER

106 Item No. 2, Madam Secretary, please.

107 ATTY. MARNI ROSE D. ZATARAIN: SP SECRETARY

108

ITEM NO. 02

109 Presented for consideration is **Ordinance No. 17-08 of the**

110 **Municipality of Inopacan, Leyte entitled, "AN ORDINANCE**

111 **CREATING THE INOPACAN DANGEROUS DRUGS**

112 **ADMINISTRATIVE BOARD TO HEAR AND ACT ON COMPLAINT**

113 **AND ENFORCE THE PROCESS OF ABATEMENT ON**

114 ESTABLISHMENT PROVEN USED AS DRUG DEN AS A PUBLIC
115 NUISANCE PURSUANT TO SECTION 52, ARTICLE VII OF REPUBLIC
116 ACT 9165, AND TO APPROPRIATE FUNDS FOR ITS
117 IMPLEMENTATION,” recommended for the declaration of its
118 VALIDITY by the Provincial Legal Office in its 2nd Indorsement
119 dated October 14, 2017.

120
121 HON. FLORANTE A. CAYUNDA, JR.: 5TH DIST. BOARD MEMBER/FLOOR LEADER

122 Mr. Chair, I think this is the same Ordinance that has been taken up by the
123 Committee of the Whole earlier.

124 So, I move that this be referred to the Committee of the Whole.

125 HON. EMMANUEL L. GACIS: 5TH DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

126 Second.

127 HON. CARLO P. LORETO: VICE-GOVERNOR/PRESIDING OFFICER

128 There is a motion to refer to the Committee of the Whole the subject Ordinance
129 of Inopacan.

130 Discussion?

131 Hearing none, the motion is carried and approved.

132 Approved unanimously.

RES. NO. 2017-687

133 Before we proceed, earlier after the Committee Hearing it was agreed that an
134 Inter-Agency Technical Working Group be created with the Lawyer from PDEA, the staff
135 from DILG, the Officer from PNP and the Board. Our meeting, the first meeting of the
136 Inter-Agency Technical Working Group will be on Friday, November 10, 2017, here at
137 the Conference Room na siguro. But I will coordinate first with the Head of the
138 Agencies, so that they will be on Official Business here and hopefully by next week we
139 will have finalized the draft.

140 Okay, let's proceed, Mr. Floor Leader.

141 HON. FLORANTE A. CAYUNDA, JR.: 5TH DIST. BOARD MEMBER/FLOOR LEADER

142 Item No. 3, Madam Secretary, please.

143 ATTY. MARNI ROSE D. ZATARAIN: SP SECRETARY

144 **ITEM NO. 03**

145 Presented for consideration is a **NOTICE OF HEARING (Case No. 2017-234)**

146 from the National Telecommunications Commission, Quezon City for the
147 Application of AMA TELECOMMUNICATION CORPORATION, set to be heard on
148 November 6, 2017 (Monday) 10:00 a.m. at the Legal Department, 3rd Floor, NTC,
149 BIR Road, East Triangle, Diliman Quezon City.

150
151 HON. FLORANTE A. CAYUNDA, JR.: 5TH DIST. BOARD MEMBER/FLOOR LEADER

152 I move to take note of the Notice of Hearing from the National
153 Telecommunications Commission.

154 I so move.

155 HON. MA. CORAZON E. REMANDABAN: 3RD DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

156 Second.

157 HON. CARLO P. LORETO: VICE-GOVERNOR/PRESIDING OFFICER

158 There is a motion to take note of the same, as stated.

159 Discussion?

160 Hearing none, the motion is carried and approved.

161 Approved unanimously.

RES. NO. 2017-688

162 HON. FLORANTE A. CAYUNDA, JR.: 5TH DIST. BOARD MEMBER/FLOOR LEADER

163 Item No. 4, Madam Secretary, please.

164 ATTY. MARNI ROSE D. ZATARAIN: SP SECRETARY

165 **ITEM NO. 04**

166 Presented for consideration is **Ordinance No. 375 of the**
167 **Municipality of Babatngon, Leyte, entitled, "AN ORDINANCE**
168 **REQUIRING THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT UNIT OF BABATNGON,**
169 **LEYTE TO ENSURE THE EARLY RELEASE OF TERMINAL BENEFITS,**
170 **GRATUITIES AND OTHER REMUNERATIONS OF ALL RETIRING,**
171 **SEPARATED AND TERMINATED FROM THE SERVICE LOCAL**
172 **GOVERNMENT OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYEES,"** recommended for
173 the declaration of its **VALIDITY** by the Provincial Legal Office in its
174 2nd Indorsement dated October 20, 2017.

175
176 HON. FLORANTE A. CAYUNDA, JR.: 5TH DIST. BOARD MEMBER/FLOOR LEADER

177 Can you recognize the Honorable Abellanosa, Mr. Chair?

178 HON. CARLO P. LORETO: VICE-GOVERNOR/PRESIDING OFFICER

179 The Honorable Abellanosa is recognized.

180 HON. RANULFO S. ABELLANOSA: 1ST DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

181 Thank you.

182 Item No. 4 is with regards to Ordinance No. 375 of the Municipality of Babatngon,
183 Leyte which is, “An ordinance requiring the Local Government Unit of Babatngon, Leyte
184 to ensure the early release of terminal leave benefits, gratuities and other
185 remunerations of all retiring, separated and terminated from the service Local
186 Government Officials and Employees.”

187 Actually, this has already been recommended for approval by the Provincial
188 Legal Office, since this is an exercise of the powers necessary, appropriate or incidental
189 for efficient and effective governance, authorized under Section 16 of the Local
190 Government Code.

191 If there is no objection or modifications of this particular item, this representation
192 would like to move for its approval.

193 I so move.

194 HON. NOLIE C. CAÑA: LnBP PRESIDENT

195 Second.

196 HON. CARLO P. LORETO: VICE-GOVERNOR/PRESIDING OFFICER

197 It has been moved and duly seconded, as stated.

198 Discussion?

199 Hearing none, the motion is carried and approved.

200 Approved unanimously.

RES. NO. 2017-689

201 HON. FLORANTE A. CAYUNDA, JR.: 5TH DIST. BOARD MEMBER/FLOOR LEADER

202 Item No. 5, Madam Secretary, please.

203 ATTY. MARNI ROSE D. ZATARAIN: SP SECRETARY

204 **ITEM NO. 05**

205 Presented for consideration is **Ordinance No. 17-15 s. 2017 of the**
206 **Municipality of Burauen, Leyte, entitled, “AN ORDINANCE APPROVING**
207 **ON THIRD AND FINAL READING, THE COMPREHENSIVE LOCAL TAX AND**
208 **REVENUE CODE OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF BURAUEN, LEYTE (2017),”**
209 recommended for the declaration of its **VALIDITY** by the Provincial Legal
210 Office in its 2nd Indorsement dated October 25, 201

211
212 HON. FLORANTE A. CAYUNDA, JR.: 5TH DIST. BOARD MEMBER/FLOOR LEADER

213 Can you recognize the Honorable Apostol, Mr. Chair?

214 HON. CARLO P. LORETO: VICE-GOVERNOR/PRESIDING OFFICER

215 The Honorable Apostol is recognized.

216 HON. TRINIDAD G. APOSTOL: 2ND DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

217 Thank you Mr. Chair.

218 HON. CARLO P. LORETO: VICE-GOVERNOR/PRESIDING OFFICER

219 Welcome.

220 HON. TRINIDAD G. APOSTOL: 2ND DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

221 This Ordinance No. 17-15 s. 2017 of the Municipality of Burauen, Leyte, is “An
222 ordinance approving on third and final reading the Comprehensive Local Tax and
223 Revenue Code of the Municipality of Burauen, Leyte (2017).”

224 Mr. Chair, this has been recommended as valid by the Provincial Legal Office in
225 its 2nd Endorsement dated October 25, 2017, provided, that pursuant to the provision of
226 Section 140 of the Code, “ province may levy an amusement tax”, without distinction
227 whether the operator is Ambulant or Itinerant. Provided, likewise, that the imposition of
228 Tax or Fees on “Mining Operators” and “Forest Concessions and Forest Products”,
229 does not overlap the authority of the Department of Environment and Natural Resources
230 (DENR), or that of the Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR), through the National Internal
231 Revenue Code (NIRC). And provided further, that pursuant to Section 5(e) of P.D. 449
232 the “National Fund Raising Campaigns for Charitable purposes” should be authorized
233 by the President. And that pursuant to Section 5 (f) of the same P.D. 449, “no gambling
234 of any kind be permitted on the premises of the cockpit or place of cockfighting during
235 cockfights.”

236 Mr. Chair, as recommended by the Provincial Legal Office and that they have
237 followed all the provisions that have been observed by the Provincial Legal Office, I
238 move that we approve this ordinance coming from the Municipality of Burauen, Leyte.

239 I so move.

240 HON. NOLIE C. CAÑA: LnBP PRESIDENT

241 Second.

242

243 HON. RANULFO S. ABELLANOSA: 1ST DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

244 Second.

245 HON. CARLO P. LORETO: VICE-GOVERNOR/PRESIDING OFFICER

246 It has been moved and duly seconded, as stated, to approve the same.

247 Discussion?

248 Hearing none, the motion is carried and approved.

249 Approved unanimously.

RES. NO. 2017-690

250 HON. FLORANTE A. CAYUNDA, JR.: 5TH DIST. BOARD MEMBER/FLOOR LEADER

251 Item No. 6, Madam Secretary, please.

252 ATTY. MARNI ROSE D. ZATARAIN: SP SECRETARY

253 **ITEM NO. 06**

254 Presented for consideration is the **General Fund Supplemental**
255 **Budget No. 01 CY 2017 of Dagami, Leyte** amounting to **P10,823,221.36**,
256 recommended for approval by the Local Finance Committee but subject
257 to conditions contained therein. Also presented for consideration is
258 **Supplemental AIP CY 2017** of the municipality in the amount of
259 **P10,823,221.36**.

260

261

262

ITEM NO. 07

263 Presented for consideration is **General Fund Supplemental**
264 **Budget No. 05 CY 2017 of Javier, Leyte** amounting to **P576,327.00**,
265 recommended for approval by the Local Finance Committee but subject
266 to conditions contained therein.

267

268

ITEM NO. 08

269 Presented for consideration is **General Fund Supplemental**
270 **Budget No. 04 CY 2017 of Burauen, Leyte** amounting to **P2,405,486.18**,
271 recommended for approval by the Local Finance Committee but subject
272 to conditions contained therein. Also presented for consideration is
273 **Supplemental AIP CY 2017** of the municipality in the amount of
274 **P2,000,000.00**.

275

276 HON. FLORANTE A. CAYUNDA, JR.: 5TH DIST. BOARD MEMBER/FLOOR LEADER

277 Mr. Chair, if I may.

278 May I make an omnibus motion, since Item Nos. 6, 7 and 8 are all Supplemental

279 Budgets and these have been reviewed by the Local Finance Committee and in fact,

280 the Local Finance Committee has suggested that we declare valid but subject to the

281 conditions stated in their report.

282 So, I move for the approval of the Supplemental Budgets of Dagami, Javier and
283 Burauen, subject to the conditions provided by the Local Finance Committee.

284 I so move.

285 HON. TRINIDAD G. APOSTOL: 2ND DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

286 Second.

287 HON. MANUEL VICENTE M. TORRES: 4TH DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

288 Second.

289 HON. EMMANUEL L. GACIS: 5TH DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

290 Second.

291 HON. CARLO P. LORETO: VICE-GOVERNOR/PRESIDING OFFICER

292 There is a motion to approve the three (3) Supplemental Budgets, as stated, with
293 their Supplemental AIPs.

294 Discussion?

295 Hearing none, the motion is carried and approved.

296 Approved unanimously.

RES. NO. 2017-691

297 HON. FLORANTE A. CAYUNDA, JR.: 5TH DIST. BOARD MEMBER/FLOOR LEADER

298 Item No. 9, Madame Secretary, please.

299 ATTY. MARNI ROSE D. ZATARAIN: SP SECRETARY

300 **ITEM NO. 09**

301 Presented for consideration is a letter dated October 30,2017 of
302 the Local Finance Committee re: **Mun. Ordinance No. 17-017 of**
303 **Mahaplag, Leyte** which authorizes the Mun. Mayor to make an
304 Augmentation of Appropriation in the Human Resource Management
305 Office from **Training Expenses to Travelling Expenses in the amount of**
306 **P5,000.00**. Said Augmentation is deemed in order by the Local Finance
307 Committee in above letter.

308
309 HON. FLORANTE A. CAYUNDA, JR.: 5TH DIST. BOARD MEMBER/FLOOR LEADER

310 Can you recognize the Honorable Gacis, Mr. Chair?

311 HON. CARLO P. LORETO: VICE-GOVERNOR/PRESIDING OFFICER

312 The Honorable Gacis is recognized.

313 HON. EMMANUEL L. GACIS; 5TH DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

314 Thank you.

315 Presented for consideration is Municipal Ordinance No. 17-017 of Mahaplag,
316 Leyte. The Provincial Local Finance Committee has recommended that this ordinance
317 is deemed in order and the Municipal Budget Officer has also certified that the amount
318 is still available. That is why, the local Finance Committee has recommended that this
319 Ordinance No. 17-017 is in order and this representation would like to move for the
320 approval of the said ordinance of Mahaplag, Leyte.

321 I so move.

322 HON. NOLIE C. CAÑA: LnBP PRESIDENT

323 Second.

324 HON. FLORANTE A. CAYUNDA, JR.: 5TH DIST. BOARD MEMBER/FLOOR LEADER

325 Second.

326 HON. CARLO P. LORETO: VICE-GOVERNOR/PRESIDING OFFICER

327 There is a motion, as stated.

328 Any objection?

329 Manifestations?

330 Hearing none, the motion is carried and approved.

331 Approved unanimously.

RES. NO. 2017-692

332 HON. FLORANTE A. CAYUNDA, JR.: 5TH DIST. BOARD MEMBER/FLOOR LEADER

333 That is our last item Mr. Chair.

334 HON. RANULFO S. ABELLANOSA: 1ST DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

335 Move to adjourn.

336 HON. CARLOP. LORETO: VICE-GOVERNOR/PRESIDING OFFICER

337 Before we go to the adjournment, the past days several famous personalities
338 have passed away. In Qatar, Isabel Granada passed away. Very unexpected. Here in
339 our Local Councilor from Hilongos, a Mayor from Matalom. Maybe Mr. Floor Leader
340 should we pass a resolution?

341 The Honorable Floor Leader.

342

343

344 HON. FLORANTE A. CAYUNDA, JR.: 5th DIST. BOARD MEMBER/FLOOR LEADER

345 Thank you Mr. Chair. With that Mr. Chair, since the officials are coming from the
346 5th District and I would like the Honorable Gacis also to join me in making a motion for
347 the passage of a resolution expressing our deepest condolences to the bereaved family
348 of the Honorable Loreto "Boy" Lora, SB Member of Hilongos, Leyte, who died last week
349 Mr. Chair.

350 And also another resolution expressing our deepest condolences to the bereaved
351 family of the Mayor of Matalom Honorable Dr. Rico Pajulio who died last Friday, Mr.
352 Chair. So I move.

353 HON. CARLO P. LORETO: VICE-GOVERNOR/PRESIDING OFFICER

354 So a motion in series. A separate resolution.

355 HON. FLORANTE A. CAYUNDA, JR.: 5TH DIST. BOARD MEMBER/FLOOR LEADER

356 Yes, Mr. Chair separate resolutions.

357 HON. CARLO P. LORETO: VICE-GOVERNOR/PRESIDING OFFICER

358 Let it be stated on record that when the Honorable Floor Leader offered to
359 Honorable Gacis to be his co-author in that resolution, the Honorable Gacis nodded his
360 head in silence. And it was duly seconded.

361 Discussion?

362 Yes, the Honorable Apostol?

363 HON. TRINIDAD G. APOSTOL: 2ND DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

364 Mr. Chair, I think the resolution will not only come from the 5th District Provincial
365 Board Members. It should be the all Sangguniang Panlalawigan Members.

366 HON. CARLO P. LORETO: VICE-GOVERNOR/PRESIDING OFFICER

367 Yes, I think it will be as passing. It will be in the movant. Would you like to join
368 them in the motion?

369 HON. TRINIDAD G. APOSTOL: 2ND DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

370 Yes.

371

372

373 HON. FLORANTE A. CAYUNDA, JR.: 5th DIST. BOARD MEMBER/FLOOR LEADER

374 Yes Mr. Chair, can I ask everyone from this August Body to join me in the
375 motion.

376 HON. CARLO P. LORETO: VICE-GOVERNOR/PRESIDING OFFICER

377 Okay, who will second?

378 HON. RANULFO S. ABELLANOSA: 1st DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

379 Second.

380 HON. CARLO P. LORETO: VICE-GOVERNOR/PRESIDING OFFICER

381 You will be the second?

382 HON. CARLO P. LORETO: VICE-GOVERNOR/PRESIDING OFFICER

383 Omnibus motion maam, ikaw ma second?

384 HON. RANULFO S. ABELLANOSA: 2nd DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

385 Oo sigi ako ma second.

386 HON. CARLO P. LORETO: VICE-GOVERNOR/PRESIDING OFFICER

387 Ikaw starring.

388 HON. FLORANTE A. CAYUNDA, JR.: 5th DIST. BOARD MEMBER/FLOOR LEADER

389 And maybe Mr. Chair, we will personally hand over the resolution to the
390 bereaved families. Perhaps we will depend on your schedule Mr. Chair when are you
391 available to go there in the municipalities to hand over the resolution.

392 HON. CARLO P. LORETO: VICE-GOVERNOR/PRESIDING OFFICER

393 Okay, sigi anytime. Perhaps aside from our resolution, we can offer a little token.

394 The Floor Leader will go around to collect?

395 Seriously. Discussion?

396 The Honorable Boy Lora was a faithful Engineer. He served the Department of
397 Public Works and Highways in the 4th District for sometime. And then as a Councilor, he
398 was always grounded of what the Hilongosnon need. On the other hand, Mayor Rico
399 Pajulio was very fit, he had a very slim body, heavy arms. He lifted weights. And it is a
400 surprise really that he should pass away in that fashion. In his farm, suddenly literally

401 drop dead. He was a friend, faithful and just to me. And to many others, a doctor who
402 went around treating patients.

403 HON. FLORANTE A. CAYUNDA, JR.: 5th DIST. BOARD MEMBER/FLOOR LEADER

404 Yes, he served at the Matalom Community Hospital for free Mr. Chair. He offered
405 free services.

406 HON. CARLO P. LORETO: VICE-GOVERNOR/PRESIDING OFFICER

407 It was in his term before as Mayor that the Community Hospital was transferred
408 to the municipality for operation. In his white shorts, in his slippers, he would go around
409 treating patients. A really good man. He is a big loss not only to me but to many others.
410 I only wish he had more time to serve the people.

411 Yes, any other comments?

412 Discussion?

413 Hearing none, the motions were carried in series.

414 Approved unanimously, the resolution of condolence to the bereaved family of
415 the late Honorable Lora. RES. NO. 2017-693

416 Approved unanimously, the resolution of condolence to the bereaved family of
417 the late Honorable Pajulio. RES. NO. 2017-694

418 HON. FLORANTE A. CAYUNDA, JR.: 5th DIST. BOARD MEMBER/FLOOR LEADER

419 Mr. Chair, I also would like to move for a resolution, en masse, expressing our
420 condolences to the bereaved family of former Board Member Bienvenido B. Aniceto
421 who passed away last November 2, 2017.

422 HON. RANULFO S. ABELLANOSA: 1st DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

423 I second.

424 HON. CARLO P. LORETO: VICE-GOVERNOR/PRESIDING OFFICER

425 Discussion?

426 Hearing none, the motion is carried. RES. NO. 2017-695

427 HON. FLORANTE A. CAYUNDA, JR.: 5TH DIST. BOARD MEMBER/FLOOR LEADER

428 Mr. Chair, can you recognize the Honorable Ang.

429

430 HON. CARLO P. LORETO: VICE-GOVERNOR/PRESIDING OFFICER

431 The Honorable Ang is recognized.

432 HON. ALAN P. ANG: 3rd DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

433 I move to adjourn Mr. Chair.

434 HON. CARLO P. LORETO: VICE-GOVERNOR/PRESIDING OFFICER

435 Session is adjourned.

436 (Adjourned at 3:00 pm)

437

438

439

440

441

442

443

444

445

446

447

448

449

450

451

452

453

454

455

456

457

458

459

460

461

462

463

464

465

466

467

468

469

470

471

472

473

474

475

476

477

478

479

480

481

482

I HEREBY CERTIFY to the correctness of the foregoing minutes.

ATTY. MARNI ROSE D. ZATARAIN
Secretary to the Sanggunian

APPROVED:

ATTY. CARLO P. LORETO
Vice Governor
Presiding Officer

FLORANTE A. CAYUNDA, JR
Floor Leader

NICCOLO J. VILLASIN
1st Deputy Floor Leader
(OB, 2nd District of Leyte)

MESIAS P. AREVALO
2nd Deputy Floor Leader

GINA E. MERILO
1st District Board Member
(On Mandatory Leave)

RANULFO S. ABELLANOSA
1st District Board Member

TRINIDAD G. APOSTOL
2nd District Board Member

ALAN PEREÑA ANG
3rd District Board Member

MA. CORAZON E. REMANDABAN
3rd District Board Member

MANUEL VICENTE M. TORRES
4th District Board Member

EMMANUEL L. GACIS
5th District Board Member

WILSON S. UY
PCL President
Ex-Officio Member
(Absent)

NOLIE C. CAÑA
Provincial Liga ng mga Barangay President
Ex-Officio Member

/naomie
/vilma
/divine
/elma

Date Approved _____

